
DM #81481 

 

 
SPECIAL MEETING  

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER  
Monday, October 2, 2017  

1:30 p.m. in the Centennial Conference Room  
Located in the Montrose City Hall Annex, 433 S. 1st Street 

 
 

 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Tom Chinn   
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3) PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Request any additions or alterations to the Agenda from any Board Members.  If the agenda 
is acceptable request a Motion and Second to approve the Agenda for the October 2, 2017, 
Special Meeting. 

 
Action:  Consider making a motion to approve the agenda. 

 
5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES   4-7 

 
Consideration of the minutes of the WestCO Board Meeting held June 19, 2017. 
 
Action:  Consider making a motion to approve the Minutes of the WestCO Board Meeting 
held June 19, 2017. 
 

6) APPROVAL OF MINUTES   8-9 
 
Consideration of the minutes of the WestCO Board Meeting held September 25, 2017. 
 
Action:  Consider making a motion to approve the Minutes of the WestCO Board Meeting 
held September 25, 2017.  

 
7) RESOLUTION 2017-05 POLICY MANUAL SECTIONS   10-49 

 
Consideration of Resolution 2017-05 adopting WestCO Policy Manual sections: 

 Chapter 1, Formation of WestCO and Governance 
o 103 – Organizational Structure 
o 104 – Mission and Values 
o 105 – Drafting Policy and Policy Changes 
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 Chapter 4, Procurement 

o 401 – Procurement Introduction 
o 402 – Purchasing Authority 
o 403 – Solicitation Requirements 
o 404 – Types of Solicitation 
o 405 – Contracts 
o 406 – Requisitions & Purchase Orders 
o 407 – Surplus Property 
o 408 – Ethics in Public Procurement 
o 409 – Procurement Glossary 
o 410 - Forms 

 
Action:  Consider making a motion to approve Resolution 2017-05. 
 
Staff:  Mandy Stollsteimer, Executive Director  
 

8) RESOLUTION 2017-06 COLORADO BANK TRUST ACCOUNT   50-51 
 
 Consideration of Resolution 2017-06 establishing a Colorado Bank Trust Account.  
 
 Action:  Consider making a motion to approve Resolution 2017-06. 
 
 Staff:  Mandy Stollsteimer, Executive Director 
 
9) RESOLUTION 2017-07 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND   52 
 
 Consideration of Resolution 2017-07 establishing an Equipment Replacement Fund 
 
 Action:  Consider making a motion to approve Resolution 2017-07. 
 
 Staff:  Mandy Stollsteimer, Executive Director 
 
10) APPROVAL OF THE 2016 FINANCIAL AUDIT  53-72 
 
 Consideration of approving the 2016 Financial Audit prepared by Holscher, Mayberry & 

Company, LLC. 
 
 Action:  Consider making a motion to approve the 2016 Financial Audit. 
 
 Staff:  Mandy Stollsteimer, Executive Director 
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11) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE:  MANDY STOLLSTEIMER 

 
12) GENERAL WESTCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS DISCUSSION 
 
13) EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Action:  Consider making a motion to move into executive session for discussion of 
personnel matters under C.R.S. § 24-6-402(2)(f). 
 

14) ADJOURNMENT 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

JUNE 19, 2017 
  
 
A meeting of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center (WestCO) Board of Directors was 
held on Monday, June 19, 2017, in the City of Montrose Centennial Meeting Room located at 433 
South First Street.  Said meeting was posted in accordance with the Sunshine Law. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Chairperson Tom Chinn – Chief of Police, City of Montrose 
Vice Chairperson John Cheroske – Fire Inspector, Telluride Fire Protection District 
Secretary Tad Rowan – Fire Chief, Montrose Fire Protection District 
Chris Broady – Chief of Police, Mountain Village Police Department  
Jim Kolar – Chief Marshall, Telluride Marshal’s Office 
George Jackson – Chief of Police, Town of Olathe 
 

GUESTS: 
Mandy Stollsteimer – Executive Director, WestCO  
Carolyn Bellavance – Deputy City Clerk, City of Montrose 
Andrew Boyko – Assistant City Attorney, City of Montrose 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Tom Chinn called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA  
 
There were no changes to the agenda.  A motion was made by Chris Broady, seconded by Tad 
Rowan, to approve the agenda as presented.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by John Cheroske, seconded by Chris Broady, to approve the minutes of the 
March 20, 2017, WestCO meeting as presented.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
A motion was made by John Cheroske, seconded by Tad Rowan, to approve the minutes of the 
June 1, 2017, WestCO special meeting as presented.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
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RESOLUTION 2017-03 POLICY MANUAL SECTIONS 
 
Consideration of Resolution 2017-03 adopting WestCO Policy Manual sections Chapter 1, 
Formation of WestCO and Governance; Chapter 2, Employee Regulations; and Chapter 3, Safety. 
 
A motion was made by Tad Rowan, seconded by John Cheroske, to approve Resolution 2017-03, 
Policy Manual Sections, as presented.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 
Mandy Stollsteimer highlighted several topics from the report: 
 
WestCO operations:  The CIRSA (Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency) audit last 
week went well, predicated upon policy manual sections being adopted today for safety and 
employee regulations.  Concerns were raised with existing 20” work station monitors not being 
large enough to prevent eye fatigue and vision problems in the future.  In addition, CIRSA is 
requiring an annual action plan and have identified five areas of interest:  policy approval with 
employee training on the new policies, add one additional work station monitor, implementation 
of a password logon system, and address problems with the heating/air conditioning system. 
 
Mandy mentioned receiving a telephone call from Steve Metheny, Vice President of Power Supply 
& Management Services at DMEA, for dispatch services May 17-18, 2017, regarding downed 
power lines as a result of the snow storm.  She acknowledged that it was a seamless process for 
WestCO dispatchers to work with DMEA. 
 
Financial Overview:  Mandy noted the “communications” line item on the revenue/expense 
report shows a year-to-date expense of $226.72, however, expenses for the three T-1 lines are not 
included as these charges haven’t been internally billed at this time.  Future billing is being 
redirected to WestCO at $850/month.  August reports will reflect expenses for two dispatchers to 
attend the APCO conference. 
 
2017 Projected Budget:  The 2017 budget indicated an expense for a part-time temporary position, 
which has not been filled at this time.  The temporary position must be a trained person with a 
specific skill set as a dispatcher. 
 
Industry:  Following up on a request at the last work session, Andrew Boyko provided 
clarification about open records and how the “sunshine laws” apply to WestCO.  He clarified that 
WestCO is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and subject to the laws, i.e. WestCO 
does not receive taxpayer dollars but uses taxpayer dollars as a revenue source. 
 
The board discussed ownership of WestCO recordings and requests for WestCO records.  As stated 
in the IGA, Mandy noted that audio recordings are the property of the responding agency.  Before 
releasing information, she requests confirmation from the agency. 
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EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Consideration of a motion to move into executive session for discussion of personnel matters under 
C.R.S. 24-6-402(1)(f). 
 
At 2:06 p.m., a motion was made by Jim Kolar, seconded by John Cheroske, to enter in an executive 
session for the purposes of discussion of a personnel matter.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
At 2:30 p.m., a motion was made by Tad Rowan, seconded by Chris Broad, to adjourn the executive 
session and resume the regular meeting.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
APPROVAL TO OVER-HIRE WESTCO TELECOMMUNICATOR POSITION(S) 
 
The board discussed consideration of the request to allow the Executive Director to over-hire an 
approved number of Telecommunicators to fill vacancies and staff support of two people per shift 
in 2017.  The will consider the additional FTEs for the 2018 budget year.   
 
A motion was made by Jim Kolar, seconded by George Jackson, to over hire two 
telecommunication positions for the balance of 2017.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
Chief Chinn requested Mandy to provide recommendations for salaries plus existing hiring and 
training processes after review of the position comparisons for dispatch centers from Garfield 
County Emergency Communication Authority, Colorado State Patrol, Grand Junction Regional 
Communication Center, Cortez dispatch, and Gunnison Regional Communications Center. 
 
GENERALWESTCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS DISCUSSION 
 
The board discussed holding a joint meeting with METSA and SMETSA as required by the 
WestCO IGA.  Andrew noted the board members’ collective presence and Mandy’s attendance at 
the meetings complies with the WestCO bylaws for the joint meeting. 
 
Mandy reminded the board of the 2016 performance review process for her position and requested 
confirmation to follow the same process again this year.  The board was fine with that 
determination and Mandy requested board comments be provided to City of Montrose HR Director 
Terri Wilcox.  The formal performance evaluation review would be added to the September board 
meeting as an executive session. 
 
A 2018 preliminary budget is due by July 31, 2017 and this topic will be added to the July 10, 
2017, work session for presentation.  A budget recommendation is due by August 31, 2017, with 
the final approval by September 30, 2017. 
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ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Chris Broady, with a second by Tad Rowan, to adjourn the meeting at 2:59 
p.m.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
  
 Tom Chinn, Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
  
  

Tad Rowan, Secretary 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

September 25, 2017 
  
 
A Meeting of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center (WestCO) Board of Directors was 
held on Monday, September 25, 2017, in the City of Montrose Centennial Meeting Room located 
at 433 South First Street.  Said meeting was posted in accordance with the Sunshine Law. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT (BY TELECONFERENCE): 

Vice Chairperson John Cheroske – Fire Inspector, Telluride Fire Protection District 
Secretary Tad Rowan – Fire Chief, Montrose Fire Protection District 
Chris Broady – Chief of Police, Mountain Village Police Department  
George Jackson – Chief of Police, Olathe Police Department  
Jim Kolar – Chief Marshall, Telluride Marshal’s Office 
 

GUESTS: 
Mandy Stollsteimer – Executive Director, WestCO  
Andrew Boyko – Assistant City Attorney, City of Montrose 
Carolyn Bellavance – Deputy City Clerk, City of Montrose 
Drea Cole – Police Systems Administrator, City of Montrose 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice Chairman John Cheroske called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was not recited due to the various locations of participants. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA  
 
There were no changes to the agenda.  A motion was made by Chris Broady, seconded by Tad 
Rowan, to approve the agenda as presented.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 
RESOLUTION 2017-04 – 2017 2018 BUDGET APPROVAL 
 
The WestCO Board considered Resolution 2017-04 for approval of the 2018 Budget. 
 
A motion was made by Tad Rowan, seconded by Jim Kolar to approve Resolution 2017-04.  All 
voted yes.  Motion passed 
 
WESTCO SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 
 
The WestCO board considered calling a Special Meeting for Monday, October 2, 2017.   
 
A motion was made by Jim Kolar, seconded by Chris Broady, to call a Special Board Meeting for 
Monday, October 2, 2017, at 1:30 p.m. in the City of Montrose Centennial Meeting Room located 
at 433 South First Street.  All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
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GENERALWESTCO BOARD OF DIRECTORS DISCUSSION 
 
There was no further board discussion.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Jim Kolar, seconded by George Jackson, to adjourn the meeting.  All voted 
yes.  The meeting was adjourned at 1:38 p.m.  
 
 
  
 John Cheroske, Vice Chairperson 

 
ATTEST: 
  
  

Tad Rowan, Secretary 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2017-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WESTERN COLORADO 
REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER ADOPTING POLICY MANUAL SECTIONS.  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center 
(“WestCO”) desires to set policy and provide direction for its employees;  
 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to compile such policies in a clearly stated and comprehensive 
manual;  
 
WHEREAS, the Policy Manual is intended to provide guidelines covering public service by 
WestCO Employees, and may be amended and supplemented from time to time, without notice, 
and at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER: 
 
Section 1. The following chapters, in their entirety, are adopted as the Policy Manual for the 
Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center: 
 

Chapter 1, Introduction and Organization 
  103 – Organizational Structure (as amended)  
  104 – Mission and Values  
  105 – Drafting Policy and Policy Changes  
 

Chapter 4, Procurement 
  401 – Procurement Introduction 

402 – Purchasing Authority 
403 – Solicitation Requirements 
404 – Types of Solicitation 
405 – Contracts 
406 – Requisitions & Purchases Orders 
407 – Surplus Property 
408 – Ethics in Public Procurement 
409 – Procurement Glossary 
410 – Forms 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event any policy, chapter, or part thereof is judged 
to be inconsistent with law, inoperative by a court of competent jurisdiction, or is invalidated by a 
policy or contract duly adopted by this Board the remaining policies, chapters, and parts thereof 
shall remain in full effect. 
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INTRODUCED, READ, and ADOPTED this ______ day of October 2017, by the Board 
of Directors of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center. 
     
 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH 
CENTER 

 
 
     By: __________________________________ 
            Tom Chinn, Chairperson  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Tad Rowen, Secretary  
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POLICY MANUAL 

103 

CHAPTER INTRODUCTION AND ORGANIZATION  

DIRECTIVE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 

08-28-17 ORGINIZATIONAL STRUCTURE Page 1 of 3 

 

103.01    ACRONYMS 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD) 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL DISPATCH (EMD) 

PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATOR (PST) 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER  
(WestCO)  

 

103.02  DESCRIPTION WestCO is organized to ensure efficient, effective delivery of services.  
The organizational structure is depicted graphically on the below 
organizational chart. 

103.03  CHAIN OF 
COMMAND 

Board of Directors – Governing Body that consists of six (6) members 
and one administrative representative.   

Executive Director – Under the direction of the Board of Directors, the 
Executive Director is the individual responsible for the overall 
management and operation of WestCO.  The Executive Director is also 
responsible for the protection of the organization’s financial assets, 
personnel management, and ensuring compliance with Board directives 
and applicable federal and state requirements.  Duties include, but are not 
limited to: 

 Involvement and participation in all accounting functions 
including those necessary for auditing, budgeting, financial 
analysis, capital asset and property management and payroll.   

 Involvement and participation in human resource management 
and general management over all WestCO employees, including 
but not limited to hiring, termination, developing position 
descriptions, setting compensation based on approved budget, 
managing employee training, working with employees’, 
supervisors, and applying Board approved employee polices and 
benefits in accordance with federal and state requirements.  

 Interaction with board members, member-entities, personnel 
outside organizations and other sponsors in regard to matters 
affecting WestCO. 

 Assist with the development of current and long-term 
organizational goals and objectives as well as policies and 
procedures. 

 Establish plans to achieve goals set by the Board of Directors and 
implementation of board policies.  
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 Analyzation and evaluation of vendor services, particularly for 
technologic aspects of radio communications and related aspects, 
to determine programs and providers that best meet the needs of 
WestCO, providing recommendations to the Board.  

 Negotiation of services terms and premiums and executing 
contracts with benefit plan providers, supply and service vendors, 
auditors, and consultants.   

Telecommunicator Supervisor – Under the direction of the Executive 
Director, the Telecommunicator Supervisors are the individuals that 
provide oversight and leadership to the Public Safety 
Telecommunicators.  Duties include, but are not limited to: 

 Plans, organizes, directs and evaluates the operation of the unit 
on an assigned shift 

 Schedules, directs, and supervises personnel engaged in 
answering administrative telephone lines, 911 telephone lines, 
text to 911, radio calls for emergency and non-emergency 
assistance 

 Administer or makes recommendations for routine personnel 
matters affecting subordinates 

 Observes and ensures compliance with all applicable Federal 
Communication rules and regulations, along with WestCO 
procedures 

 Reports all commendable and censurable conduct of assigned 
personnel 

 Responsible for any assignment given to them by the Executive 
Director 

 Work console when required 
 Provide training to PSTs through observation and critique 
 Report and log all equipment problems 
 Prepare schedules and assign tasks based on priority of needs 

Public Safety Telecommunicator – Under the direction of the 
Telecommunicator Supervisor, the Public Safety Telecommunicators are 
the individuals that are the primary contact for dispatch services.  Duties 
include, but are not limited to: 

 Receive and document emergency and non-emergency calls for 
service, whether received via phone call, radio transmission, or 
text to 911.  

 Dispatch applicable resources, including law enforcement, fire 
and emergency medical services.  

 Provide pre-arrival medical instruction, EMD instruction  
 Maintain electronic and paper documentation of request, unit 

location, and status 
 Operate CCIC/NCIC computer terminal 
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 Prepare daily pass-on/briefing document 
 Respond and process requests from user agency personnel 

103.04  
ORGINIZATIONAL 
CHART 

 

 

 

 

 

WestCO BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

TELECOMMUNICATOR 
SUPERVISOR (1)

TELECOMMUNICATOR 
(6)

TELECOMMUNICATOR 
SUPERVISOR (1)

TELECOMMUNICATOR 
(5)
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
POLICY MANUAL 

104 

CHAPTER INTRODUCTION AND ORGANIZATION  

DIRECTIVE MISSION AND VALUES 
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104.01    ACRONYMS 

 
WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER  

(WestCO)  

104.02    MISSION Through cooperation, continued education and our commitment to 

excellence, we are the vital link between emergency services and our 

communities; providing professional effective communications, 

maximizing responder and public safety. 

104.03    VALUES We Strive for Integrity 

Excellence 

Safety 

Teamwork 

Commitment and 

Outstanding Performance 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
POLICY MANUAL 

105 

CHAPTER INTRODUCTION AND ORGANIZATION  

DIRECTIVE DRAFTING POLICY AND POLICY CHANGES 
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103.01  ACRONYMS 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD) 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER  
(WestCO)  

 

103.02  APPROVAL OF 
POLICY AND 
REVISIONS 

All policy revisions or additions will be approved by the Board via 
resolution.      

 

105.03  DRAFTING OF 
POLICY AND 
REVISIONS 

Revisions or additions to policy may be drafted by any employee of 
WestCO and submitted through the chain of command for consideration 
and approval.    

 

105.04  REVISON 
FORMAT 

The text of new policy will be in the WestCO policy format.  

When submitting revisions, the below format will be used.    

 Suggested additions to policy will be noted in red font. 
 Suggested deletions to policy will be noted in blue strikethrough 

front.   

105.05  DISTRIBUTION 
OF NEW POLICY AND 
REVISIONS 

Every new employee will receive a copy of WestCO policy.  New policy 
and policy revisions will be distributed to all WestCO personnel.  It is the 
responsibility of each employee to read and comply with all policies and 
other applicable written directives.   

Supervisory staff will track the revisions compliance rate and will take 
action to ensure all member of their teams are properly acknowledging 
policy revisions in a timely manner.   
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401 

CHAPTER PROCUREMENT 

DIRECTIVE INTRODUCTION 
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401.01  ACRONYMS WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
(WestCO) 

401.02 STATEMENT OF 
POLICY 

WestCO is governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all public 
relationships, striving to merit respect and inspire confidence as a trusted 
public servant. 
 
WestCO shall maintain an effective, efficient and economical program for 
the purchase of goods, services and implementation of construction 
contracts, resulting in the greatest quality and value for the lowest possible 
cost. 
 

401.03  OVERVIEW This policy serves as a guide for fair and equitable treatment of all persons 
involved in purchasing, and a tool for maximizing quality and value for 
the tax dollar. 
 
As trusted public servants, WestCO personnel must work as a team and 
cooperate with one another to administer an effective procurement 
program.  Employees who are part of the purchasing cycle must be aware 
of policies and procedures that are the background for ethical and fair 
procurement practices. 
 
This Procurement Policy shall be a complete source of information and 
detailed procedures for centralized purchasing of commodities, services 
and equipment.  All WestCO employees shall be familiar with the 
regulations set forth and shall adhere to the procedures and policies 
established herein. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
POLICY MANUAL 

402 

CHAPTER PROCUREMENT 

DIRECTIVE PURCHASING AUTHORITY 
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402.01  ACRONYMS WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
(WestCO) 

402.02 BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

The responsibility for all purchases made by the WestCO is held by the 
Board of Directors, however, the Board of Directors may authorize the 
Executive Director to establish recommended procurement rules and 
regulations for all WestCO personnel as deemed necessary to carry out the 
mission of WestCO in an efficient and cost effective manner.  The Board of 
Directors possesses the sole authority for any deviation from purchasing 
regulations and may invoke disciplinary action upon the individual for 
improper purchasing practices.  Disciplinary action may be in the form of 
restricted purchasing privileges, restitution, suspension, termination or any 
other form deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors. 
 

402.03  EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

By authority of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director may be 
granted purchasing authority with fiscal responsibility over their respective 
budgeted funds and expenditures, which shall follow the procurement 
guidelines contained herein.  The Executive Director maintains the 
responsibility of ensuring all WestCO personnel are knowledgeable of the 
purchasing procedures and fully understand the procedures established by 
this policy.  
 
The Executive Director shall be authorized to make purchases for WestCO 
in compliance with the approved budget and budget glossary.  Purchases 
that exceed are not in compliance with the approved budget or the budget 
glossary require Board approval.  
 

402.04  GENERAL 
PURCHASING 
PHILOSOPHY 

All WestCO employees making purchases are expected to procure the “best 
value” in supplies and contractual services through an open and competitive 
process. 

 WestCO may consider all factors in the bid process including price, 
experience, quality, availability and value-added services.  The 
Board of Directors may elect to waive any bid process for reasons 
such as emergency, undue delay, hardship, or if such waiver is 
determined to be within the best interest of the Western Colorado 
Regional Dispatch Center. 

 
When in the best interest of WestCO, WestCO may participate in or 
administer cooperative purchasing agreements with the State or one or more 
political subdivisions of the State of Colorado. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
POLICY MANUAL 

403 

CHAPTER PROCUREMENT 

DIRECTIVE SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS 
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403.01  ACRONYMS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
(WestCO) 

 

403.02  INFORMAL – 
SMALL PURCHASES 

A. Purchases up to $2,000, approved by the Executive Director.   
 

B. Purchases between $2,001 and $10,000 – Expenditures for supplies, 
materials, or equipment more than $2,000 but less than $10,000 may be 
made without using a formal process.  A minimum of 3 written quotes 
is recommended in the solicitation process and award may be made to 
the vendor offering the “best value” to WestCO.   

403.03  FORMAL A. Sealed Bid or RFP – (over $10,001) 
Expenditure for supplies, materials, or equipment over $10,001 may be 
made using the formal sealed bid or RFP.  After reviewing the submitted 
bids, the Executive Director issues a Memo of Recommendation. 
 

B. Other Requirements for Formal Solicitations 
Telephone, e-mail or facsimile bids are NOT acceptable in the formal 
competitive sealed bid process.  Appropriate bid forms must be used by 
all personnel. 
 
Sealed bid solicitations require a public notice be published at least 
twice in a general circulation newspaper and published at least 7 days 
preceding the bid opening date. 
 
Bids may be awarded based on “best value” for WestCO.   
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
POLICY MANUAL 

404 

CHAPTER PROCUREMENT 

DIRECTIVE TYPES OF SOLICITATION 
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404.01  ACRONYMS INVITATION FOR BID (IFB) 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

SCOPE OF WORK (SOW) 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
(WestCO) 

 

404.02  RFP – WHEN IT 
IS USED 

An RFP is utilized in acquiring services or specialized products when one 
or more of the following factors apply: 

1. The complex nature or technical details of a particular procurement 
may not be practical or advantageous to WestCO to issue an IFB; 

2. Specifications cannot be prepared fairly or objectively as to permit 
open competition in an IFB; 

3. Electronic equipment or high technology equipment is available 
from a limited number of sources; or 

4. Specifications cannot be prepared except by reference to 
specifications of the equipment of a single source of supply. 

 
A RFP is a process to be utilized in acquiring both services and specialized 
products when objective bid specifications cannot be used. 
 
WestCO requires the specialized skills, knowledge, resources and services 
of private contractors or consultants to complete complex studies, to 
develop or revise procedures, to conduct audits, or to provide a specialized 
product.  Examples may include:  management consulting services, 
feasibility studies, software programming, social or community programs, 
specialized products such as computer mainframes, scientific/research 
equipment, etc. 
 
A contract for professional services or for specialized products between 
WestCO and a contractor is an agreement containing the SOW, goods and 
services to be delivered, the timetable, and the responsibilities for the 
services to be provided. 
 
It must be determined that the RFP process is the appropriate process to be 
utilized in the purchase of the needed product or service and that competitive 
sealed bidding is neither practicable nor advantageous to WestCO. 
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Page 2 of 10 

 

404.03  RFP – WHO CAN 
ISSUE 

The Executive Director is responsible for ensuring the process is followed 
when issuing an RFP. 

404.04  RFP – PROCESS The entire RFP process may become extensive from the time of receipt of 
the initial RFP rough draft to completion of the contract routing and signing.  
There are many variables included in the process and this should be taken 
into consideration by the Executive Director.  The process is as follows: 

1. Draft RFP 
2. Executive Director Reviews Draft 
3. RFP Issued 
4. Administraive Core Team Reviews 
5. Executive Director Recommends to the Board for consideration 
6. Executive Director issues Letter of Award 
7. Executive Director prepares contract document 
8. Contractor signs then it its routed to the Board for signatures 
9. Project begins with a Notice to Proceed issued by Executive Director

 
Executive Director is responsible to ensure that all bidders have the same 
information in order to develop and submit their proposals.  Verbal 
responses must not be provided to questions from an individual bidder when 
the answers may affect that bidder’s proposal. 
 
Addenda or supplements to the RFP may become necessary because of 
inquiries or WestCO feels additional information is necessary for further 
clarification. 
 

404.05  RFP – PUBLIC 
NOTICE 

A notice shall be placed in a general circulation newspaper and posted on 
WestCO’s website. 
 
A public notice shall be published at least 7 days preceding the bid opening 
date.  This notice ensures all interested bidders have the opportunity to bid.  
All pertinent proposal information should be contained in the notice. 
 

404.06  RFP – BOND 
REQUIREMENTS 

Bid bonds or other security acceptable to WestCO, generally 5% of the total 
bid price and performance and payment bonds (100% of total bid price) are 
required on all WestCO construction projects over $50,000 or as the Board 
and/or the Executive Director deems necessary to protect WestCO’s 
interest.  Bonds shall not expire prior to 2 years following final payment. 
 
Bid bonds or other security may be requested for commodity or service 
contracts as the Executive Director deems advisable to protect WestCO’s 
interests.  Bid bonds shall be in the amount of 5% of the bid amount 
submitted by bidder. 
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Bonding security shall be held by WestCO until the contractor is in total 
compliance with bid specifications and contract documents.  Final executed 
contract documents will be scanned into the document management system 
with the original filed with the bid documents. 
 
Bid and performance/payment bonds shall not be used as a substitute for a 
determination of a bidder’s responsibility. 
 

404.07  RFP – 
FORMAT/OUTLINE 

1. ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION:  Formal “boiler plate” 
information must be included in the RFP.  This information includes the 
schedule of activities; how, when and where proposals will be accepted, 
material ownership, confidential/proprietary information, etc.  The 
procedure for answering bidder inquiries and any pre-bid conference or 
walk-thru questions must be described. 

2. BACKGROUND, OVERVIEW, GOALS:  This includes a general 
explanation of WestCO’s involvement in the project, the need for the 
project, the specific goals or results to be achieved by the project and 
how the Scope of Work will be incorporated into WestCO’s on-going 
program. 

3. SCOPE OF WORK (SOW):  The most important section of the RFP 
is the SOW, as it is the foundation of the development of any resulting 
contract.  The contents of the SOW are not only specifications, but also 
a well thought out, complete effort to clearly understand all elements of 
the project.  The SOW is both results and procedures-oriented. 

 
404.08 RFP – RECEIPT 

OF RPF 
All proposals shall be officially received-stamped upon receipt with the 
date, time and initials of the employee.  All proposals shall be registered and 
the register shall contain the name of the bidder and a description sufficient 
to identify the product or service being requested.  No other information, 
including proposal price, shall be disclosed at the opening.  The register of 
proposals shall become public record after a Notice of Award (preliminary 
award) letter has been formally issued. 
 
Confidential/proprietary information must not be disclosed at ANY time.  
Procedures regarding the submittal of confidential/proprietary information 
are included in the procedures for the RFP. 
 
The bidder must specifically state the elements of the proposal that are 
considered confidential/proprietary.  It must be separated from the rest of 
the proposal. 
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404.09 RFP – 
EVALUATION 

A general description of the evaluation process and general evaluation 
factors must be included in the RFP: 

1. An evaluation committee will review the merits of the proposals 
received in accordance with the evaluation factors stated in the RFP.

2. Failure of the proposer to provide any information requested in the 
RFP and any addendums may result in disqualification of the 
proposal.  This responsibility is that of the bidder. 

3. The sole objective of the evaluation committee will be to 
recommend the proposal which is most responsive to WestCO’s 
needs within available monetary resources.  The specifications 
within the RFP represent the minimum performance necessary for 
response. 

4. The proposal with the most value points will be recommended for 
award. 

 
404.10  RFP – 

EVALUAITON 
COMMITTEE  

The evaluation committee must be comprised of, at a minimum the 
Administrative Core Team, and may include other qualified individuals 
representing WestCO’s best interest.  The name of the evaluation committee 
members are NOT to be revealed until all proposers have been officially 
notified as to the results of the successful proposer.   
 
The committee may consist of personnel from WestCO, other agencies, 
other governmental entities, and from private business.  The evaluation 
committee members shall be unbiased, instructed to follow the established 
evaluation format and be able to objectively evaluate all proposals.  The 
Executive Director or authorized representative shall be designated 
evaluation committee member.   
 
Once the evaluation committee have been established, their review of the 
individual proposals must be conducted INDEPENDENTLY.  The 
evaluation committee may elect to hold discussion or ask for answers to 
specific questions from a proposer in order to clarify the proposer’s 
proposal.  Any discussion will be held strictly between the committee and 
proposer.  Any clarifications to the proposal must be confirmed in writing 
by or to the proposer.   
 
The committee may also elect to have the top proposers give oral 
presentation.  The purpose of the oral presentation is to give the proposer 
the opportunity to further promote or sell their proposal and to develop a 
better understanding of both WestCO’s requirements and the proposer’s 
proposal.  These discussions are to be held strictly between the committee 
and proposer.   
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Terms and price of a RFP may be negotiated following preliminary award.  
If the proposer cannot meet the terms during the negotiations, the evaluation 
committee may elect to begin negotiations with the next proposer.   
 
Proposers not considered for further evaluation are notified in writing and 
all documents pertaining to the RFP shall be made available for public 
inspection after the Notice of Award letter has been issued by the Executive 
Director. 
 

404.11  RFP – NOTICE 
OF AWARD 

A written Notice of Award letter to the apparent successful bidder will be 
issued.  The Executive Director will also notify all unsuccessful bidders, in 
writing, as to the outcome of the evaluation process.  The evaluation factors, 
points, evaluation committee member names, and completed evaluation 
summary and recommendation report will be made available to all interested 
parties after the Notice of Award Letter has been issued. 
 
Following the Notice of Award letter to the successful bidder, the RFP 
documents will become part of the public record and open to public 
inspection. 
 
In the event that no award is made or the RFP is canceled, all received 
proposals must remain confidential and not open for public inspection.  The 
purpose is not to allow any future potential bidders an opportunity to review 
other bidder’s proposals and to gain an advantage in submitting future 
proposals. 
 

404.12  INVITATION 
FOR BID (IFB) 

The Invitation for Bid (IFB) is the method of soliciting bids for supplies, 
materials, and equipment as well as construction projects through a formal 
competitive sealed bid process.  Award is generally made to the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder whose bid complies with the 
requirements set forth in the Contract Documents. 
 
The bid documents state the time and date when the bids must be submitted 
and the procedures to be followed in receiving and opening all bids.  
Invitations also convey contractual terms, pre-bid conferences and other 
conditions applicable to the bidders.   The bid documents will indicate where 
contract documents may be obtained and any special considerations such as 
bid bonds, payment and performance bonds, etc. 
 
There may be special provisions such as warranty, service, brands, delivery, 
type of contracts, delivery penalties, bidder and owner responsibilities, 
escalation clause or special equipment information that are applicable to a 
particular bid and may become part of the contract documents. 
 
A. Procurement for services and/or commodities estimated to cost $10,001 

or more shall be advertised by a public notice published a minimum of 
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2 times in a general circulation newspaper and posted on WestCO 
website. 
 
A public notice shall be published at least 7 days preceding the bid 
opening date.  This notice ensures all interested bidders have the 
opportunity to bid.  All pertinent bid information should be contained in 
the notice including WestCO web site where they can print off all bid 
documents. 
 

B. Bid bonds or other security acceptable to WestCO, generally 5% of the 
total bid price and performance and payment bonds (100% of total bid 
price) are required on all WestCO construction projects over $50,000 or 
as the Board deems necessary to protect WestCO’s interest.  Bonds shall 
not expire prior to 2 years following final payment. 
 
Bid bonds or other security may be requested for commodity or service 
contracts as the Board deems advisable to protect WestCO’s interests.  
Bid bonds shall be in the amount of 5% of the bid amount submitted by 
bidder. 
 
Bonding security shall be held in a central location until the contractor 
is in total compliance with bid specifications and contract documents.  
Final executed contract documents will be on file with WestCO and file 
copies with the Executive Director. 
 
Bid and performance/payment bonds shall not be used as a substitute for 
a determination of a bidder’s responsibility. 
 

C. Specifications are an important part of the bid document and shall be 
available to all bidders as stated in the IFB.  If for any reason it is 
necessary to change the specifications, an addendum will be issued 
setting forth the changes. 
 
Preparation of specifications is the responsibility of the Executive 
Director. 
 
Specification changes must allow adequate notice and mailing time.  
This addendum will be posted on WestCO’s website for all bidders.  In 
certain instances, the bid opening may be postponed to allow adequate 
time for respondents to prepare their bid, based on specification changes.  
If there is not sufficient time, the IFB will be canceled and a new bid 
process initiated. 
 

D. Bids remain sealed and secure prior to bid opening.  The opening of 
sealed bids shall be a public ceremony.  Bids shall be opened by the 
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Executive Director or a designated representative at the time and place 
specified in the IFB.  Public bid openings shall have a witness to the bid 
opening. 
 
Prior to bid opening, the Executive Director shall allow a final 
opportunity for submission of bids prior to allotted time.  The Executive 
Director will announce the names of those who bid and inquire if any 
bid previously submitted may have been omitted. 
 
The name of each bidder, amount of bid and any other information the 
Executive Director or designated representative deems to be relevant 
shall be recorded on a bid tabulation sheet.  The bid tabulation sheet is 
a clean and concise abstract of the bid information and becomes part of 
the public record. 
 
Bids must be received PRIOR TO THE SPECIFIED DATE AND 
TIME as established in the bid document.  Bids received after the 
specified deadline must be immediately returned unopened to the non-
responsive vendor. 
 

E. The Executive Director shall make a written recommendation to the 
Board for award of all bids solicited through the formal competitive bid 
process. 
 
Award is generally made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder 
whose bid meets the requirements and criteria set forth in the bid 
documents, as long as that bidder provides WestCO with the “best 
value” of all bids received. 
 
The Board shall approve or disapprove the recommendation from the 
Executive Director. 
 
Following a bid opening and review, bids become confidential 
documents until the Board approves the recommendation.   All bidder 
questions and/or communications must be referred to the Executive 
Director. 
 

F. The Executive Director has authority to waive bid irregularities if the 
item is an immaterial variation from exact requirement of the bid, has 
trivial or no effect on price, quality, quantity, delivery or performance 
and waiver would not affect the relative standing of bidders or be 
otherwise prejudicial. 
 
Examples of minor bid irregularities that may be waived, but not limited 
to, are: 
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 Failure to furnish information regarding the bidder’s 
qualifications to perform the contract; 

 Failure to submit the required descriptive information or 
brochure on product(s) offered, 

 Failure to return bid addendum if bidder acknowledges receipt 
of such on the face of bid, 

 Failure to return bid addendum and there is no material effect on 
bidder’s liability under the terms of the contract, 

 Failure to sign a bid, when evidence is submitted with the bid 
that clearly shows the bid was the one intended by the bidder, 
and that failure to sign was strictly an oversight. 

 
The above are examples only and when such minor irregularities 
are discovered and the bidder is requested to remedy the problem 
within a reasonable time by submitting omitted data or by providing 
a written statement of intent 

 
G. The following items are exempted from the competitive bidding 

process: 
 Purchases made cooperatively with other units of government 

such as the State of Colorado and Government cooperative 
groups utilizing extended awards from other governmental 
agencies; 

 Professional services may be waived from competitive bidding 
when deemed in the best interest of the WestCO; 

 Purchases from federal, state or other local government units; 
 Magazines, subscriptions and renewals, books and periodicals; 
 Emergency cleanup and disposal of hazardous materials; 

Supplies, products or services, obtainable only from a single 
source as identified by the procedures herein, that may be 
indispensable to the WestCO; Although more than one source 
may exist, a competitive bid process cannot reasonably be used 
or, if used, would result in a substantially higher cost to the 
WestCO, shall otherwise injure the WestCO’s financial interests 
or shall substantially impede the WestCO’s administrative 
functions or delivery of services to the public; 

 Product or service that is required to maintain interchangeability 
or compatibility as a part of an existing integrated system; 

 Product or service required to standardize or maintain 
standardization for the purpose of reducing financial investment 
or simplify administration; 

 Product is perishable; 
 Product that is required to match product in use, so as to produce 

visual harmony; 
 Product prescribed by a professional advisor; 
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 Repair parts, warranty work and maintenance services when 
purchased from source vendor or original manufacturer for 
WestCO-owned equipment and vehicles. 
 

H. The formal bid process may be waived by the Board at the request of the 
Executive Director under the following conditions: 

 If the process may cause undue delay or hardship for WestCO; 
 When deemed in the best interest of WestCO. 

 
404.13  PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES 
Professional Services are services rendered by members of a recognized 
profession and/or who possess a special skill.  Such services are generally 
acquired for information, advice, training or direct assistance to WestCO 
operations; therefore such services do not require a formal competitive 
sealed bid process. 
 
Professional services over $50,000 shall be approved by Board. 
 

404.14  SOLE SOURCE 
PROCUREMENT 

There are times or situations when only one vendor exists that can 
successfully furnish a service or product. 
 
The Procurement Manual allows for exemption from the competitive 
process when a written determination has been made by the Executive 
Director and approved by the Board that only one source is available to 
supply a service or product.  (See Appendices:  FORM A: Sole Source 
Justification) 
 
All Sole source requests shall be submitted to the Board for consideration 
and sole source requests over $50,000 shall be submitted for consideration 
to the Board. 
 
SOLE SOURCE CRITERIA 

1. The vendor is the original manufacturer and there are no regional 
distributors; 

2. The part or equipment is not interchangeable with similar parts or 
equipment available from another manufacturer; 

3. The compatibility or conformity with WestCO-owned material or 
equipment in which non-conformance would require the expenditure 
of additional funds; 

4. No other material or equipment is available that meets the 
specialized needs of the department or performs the intended 
function; or 

5. Detailed justification is available which reasonably establishes that 
vendor as the only source practicably available to provide the item 
or service required. 
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Personal preference, convenience or “to standardize” is not sufficient 
justification for spending public funds under non-competitive conditions. 
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404.02  GENERAL Contract shall mean any agreement enforceable by law between WestCO 
and one or more outside parties, regardless of form or title, for the 
procurement of materials, services or construction.  A Contract must include 
offer and acceptance by competent parties and the furnishing of goods or 
services for an agreed monetary consideration to be effective. 
 

404.03  CONTRACT 
APPROVAL 

The WestCO Board, the Executive Director, or a designated 
representative(s) of the Board are authorized to sign contracts which bind 
WestCO for the procurement of goods, services, equipment or construction 
projects, unless a specific delegation or exemption is made by the Board by 
resolution, code, regulation or letter of authority to another official or 
employee.  The following provisions shall apply for contract approval: 

 All written contracts are subject to Board review. 
 All contracts involving WestCO expenditures in excess of $50,000 

shall require Board approval; 
 Any transaction involving the conveyance of real estate shall require 

a signature of the Board through formal Board approval; and 
 Grants and other documents requiring WestCO Board’s approval 

shall be processed in accordance with instructions from Board. 
 

404.04  
ADMINISTRATION 

Executive Director for the project and/or using agency shall administer the 
contract.  They shall be responsible for the following activities: 

 Inspecting and accepting contractor performance; 
 Communicating WestCO requirements to contractors; 
 Evaluating contractor performance; 
 Processing progress payment documents and submitting them to the 

Board; 
 Notifying WestCO Board of any disputes, failure to perform or other 

problems with contractors; and 
 Documenting all activities of the contract and assuring necessary 

information is forwarded to WestCO Board. 
 Ensuring progress payments are submitted for processing; 
 Preparing contract close-out documents; 
 Maintaining a bid file that includes the contract in shared electronic 

form; 
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 Reviewing and approving all requests for changes in delivery, price 
or specifications before any action is taken by the contractor; 

 Issuing Purchase Order and/or requisition for payment; 
 Approving final inspection paperwork; 
 Issuing notices, letters and contract default/termination notices to 

contractors; and 
 Maintaining records of vendor performance. 

 

 

32



WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
POLICY MANUAL 

406 

CHAPTER PROCUREMENT 

DIRECTIVE REQUISITIONS & PURCHASE ORDERS 

 
 

08-15-17 REQUISITIONS & PURCHASE ORDERS Page 1 of 1 

 

406.01  ACRONYMS PURCHASE ORDER (PO) 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
(WestCO) 

 

406.02  PREPARATION 
OF REQUISITION 

The requisition form shall reflect as much information as possible 
including, but not limited to, the following: 

 Date requisitioned 
 Requisitioned by 
 Vendor name and address 
 Ship to address if different from WestCO 
 Description of items requested 
 Delivery date required 
 Terms of payment i.e. Net 10 / 2% 
 Account number items are charged to 

 
406.03  DIRECT 

PURCHASES 
Direct purchases are purchases for goods or services under $2,000, which 
have been approved by the Executive Director. 

406.04  PURCHASE 
ORDERS 

In some instances the supplier or vendor requires a signed PO.  It is 
WestCO’s written document to a supplier that formally states all terms and 
conditions of the proposed purchase.  A purchase order is a legal contract.  
Contact the Executive Director if a PO is mandatory for purchase. 

406.05  RECEIVING When the requisition process is complete, WestCO must ensure that the 
packing slip or some other indication that the order is complete, in addition 
to payment documentation, is submitted to the Executive Director. 
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407.02  SURPLUS 
STOCK 

WestCO owned personal property may be disposed of when no longer 
needed by destruction, disposal, trade, sale, auction or by soliciting bids, as 
appropriately determined by the WestCO Board.  Property and Equipment 
Reduction forms need to be completed. 
 
WestCO owned personal property with a re-sale value of $1,000 or more 
shall be disposed of by a method to be approved by the WestCO Board. 
 

407.03  PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT 
REDUCTION REPORT 

 

When the Executive Director determines materials, supplies or equipment 
are of no further benefit to the department’s operation, a Property and 
Equipment Reduction Report (see Section 410: Appendices, FORM E) shall 
be submitted to the Executive Director.    Reports are required for all 
property with an original purchase price over $100.00 or items purchased 
with State or Federal grant monies. 
 

407.04  METHODS OF 
DISPOSAL 

Equipment no longer useful to WestCO operations (excess, obsolete or 
surplus) shall be reported to the Executive Director.  The Executive Director 
shall be notified of disposal of items with an original purchase cost of $500 
or more in order to update WestCO’s Fixed Asset Account. 
 
The following methods of disposition may be used for departmental surplus 
items. 
 
Transfer:  The best method of disposition is transferring to another 
department.  The Executive Director needs to be notified if assets are 
transferred to another department. 
 
Sale:  There are various methods of selling excess property and surplus 
items as outlined below: 

 Auction:  WestCO will auction to sell items to the highest bidder at 
advertised public auctions.  This could also include using a reputable 
company doing on- line auctions on such sites as e-bay. 

 Sealed Bids:  A Public notice of the sale is published in the 
newspaper as well as WestCO’s website. 
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 Commercial Market:  Certain items may be offered for sale by 
consignment to established commercial markets.  Candidates for this 
method of sale include antiques, art and specialized equipment. 

 Posted Prices:  When there is no regular market and demand is 
erratic, an item may be marked with a pre-established rice and sold 
to the public on first-come basis. 

 
Trade-in:  It may be advantageous to WestCO to seek bids on replacement 
items with bidders offering trade allowance and no trade allowance pricing.  
Award may be made in the manner that is most advantageous to WestCO. 
 
Cannibalization:  Disassembling an item to use its components for repair 
or maintenance of a similar item is authorized only if cannibalization has 
more value and benefit than disposal or trade-in of the item. 
 
Donation:  Only the Board may dispose of an item by donation to a party 
outside of WestCO if the item has a value in excess of $1,000. Items valued 
at less than $1,000 shall be approved by the Board. 
 
Hazardous Materials:  There are strict federal and state laws regarding 
disposal of hazardous materials.  Employees shall use WestCO contracts for 
the proper disposal of these materials. 
   

407.05  SALES TO 
EMPLOYEES 

All other surplus property may be bid on by WestCO Employees at a public 
auction or by sealed bid. 

407.06  GRANT FUNDED 
EQUIPMENT 

Equipment purchased with State of Federal grant funds shall be disposed of 
by following the provisions of the grant. 
 
It is the responsibility of the employee to notify the Executive Director if 
grant provisions for disposal need to be followed.  If required by the grant 
provisions, proceeds from disposal may be returned to the grant-funding 
agency. 
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408.02  STATEMENT OF 
POLICY 

Any attempt to realize personal gain through public employment is a breach 
of public trust.  No favoritism shall be extended to any vendor.  Purchases 
and contracts shall be made on the basis of competence, quality, price, 
delivery and performance. 
 
It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any employee to knowingly use 
confidential information for his or her personal gain or for the personal gain 
of others. 
 
Any agent or employee of WestCO making unauthorized purchases or 
contracts shall be personally liable for any obligations that result. 
 

408.03  GRATUTIES It is a breach of ethical standards for any person to offer, give or agree to 
give any employee a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with 
any decision or recommendation concerning a possible or actual purchase 
on behalf of WestCO.  Gratuity items shall not mean pens, pencils, calendars 
or other novelty items used as advertising by vendors and suppliers.  Those 
items stated above or any gifts received shall become the property of 
WestCO. 
 

408.04  KICKBACKS It shall be unethical for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be 
made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime 
contractor or any person associated therewith, as an inducement for the 
award of a subcontract and solicitation thereof. 

408.05  EMPLOYEES 
PURCHASES 

Any attempt to realize personal gain through employment is a breach of 
public trust.  It is a breach of ethical standards for any employee to solicit 
or request monetary discounts from vendors and suppliers based on 
employment with WestCO. 
 
No WestCO employee may purchase on any WestCO vendor account nor 
request the discount afforded WestCO for personal purchases.  Employees 
may purchase from the same vendors or suppliers on their own but WestCO 
shall not recognize such personal requests. 
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408.06  SANCTIONS The Board may impose any one or more of the following sanctions on any 
WestCO employee found to be in violations of the ethical standards so stated 
in this section: 

 Oral or written warnings or reprimands; 
 Suspension with or without pay for specified periods of time; or 
 Termination of employment 

 
A vendor or supplier found to be in violation of WestCO’s ethical standards 
may risk debarment or suspension for cause from consideration for award 
of contracts with debarment not to exceed 1 year. 
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409.02  STATEMENT The Procurement Glossary is offered as a communication tool to avoid 
misinterpretation of text.  Precision and consistency in public procurement 
documents are necessary to avoid protests, disputes and litigation.  The 
glossary seeks primarily to present meanings for purchasing purposes, not 
legally or literally accurate definitions. 
  

Addendum – An addition or supplement to a document such as items or information added to a 
procurement document. 
 
Advertise – To make a public announcement or legal notice of forthcoming solicitation with the aim of 
increasing the response and enlarging the competition; often required by law. 
 
Agreement – The bargain of the parties in fact as found in their language or by implication from the other 
circumstances, including course of dealing, usage of trade or course of performance. 
 
All Or None Bid – A bid submitted for a number of different items, services, etc., in which the bidder 
states it will not accept a partial award, but will accept only an award for all the items, services, etc., 
included in the Invitation For Bids.  Such bids are acceptable only if provided for in the invitation or if the 
bidder quoted an individual price for each of the items, services, etc., as listed and is the low bidder on each 
item. 
 
Alternate Bid – A bid submitted in knowing variance from the specifications, terms, conditions or 
provisions of the solicitation.  Such a bid is acceptable only when the variance is deemed immaterial. 
 
Amendment – A revision or change to a document; often used to correct a solicitation.  Compare with 
modification, a term generally used with respect to changes to an existing contract. 
 
As Is – A term indicating that goods offered for sale are without warranty or guarantee and that the 
purchaser takes the goods at his or her own risk without recourse against the seller for the condition or 
performance of the goods. 
 
Authority – The right to perform certain acts or prescribe rules governing the conduct of others. 
 
Award – The acceptance of a bid or proposal; the presentation of a purchase agreement or contract to a 
bidder. 
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Best Interests of (WestCO) – The rationale granting a procurement official discretion in taking action 
most advantageous to the jurisdiction when it is impossible to delineate adequately a specific response by 
law or regulation.  Case law affirms this discretion. 
 
Best Value – An assessment of the return, which can be achieved, based on the total life cycle cost of the 
item; can include an assessment of the functionality of the item; can use cost/benefit analysis to define the 
best combinations of quality, services, time, and cost considerations over the useful life of the acquired 
item. 
 
Bid – The executed document submitted by a bidder in response to an Invitation For Bid, a Request For 
Quotation or a multi-step bidding procedure. 
 
Bid Bond – An insurance agreement in which a third party agrees to be liable to pay a certain amount of 
money in the event that a specific bidder, if the bid is accepted, fails to accept the contract as bid. 
 
Bid Opening – The formal process through which bids are opened, usually in the presence of one or more 
witnesses, and the contents revealed for the first time to the jurisdiction, other bidders and the public. 
 
Bid Tabulation – A recording of bidders and abstracts of their bids listing items offered, prices, deliveries, 
etc., in response to a specific solicitation.  Made for purposes of comparison and record keeping and are 
part of the bid’s public record. 
 
Bidder – Any person submitting a competitive bid in response to a solicitation. 
 
Blanket Order (purchases) – A contract under which a contractor, vendor or supplier agrees to provide 
goods or services to a purchaser on a demand basis.  The contract generally establishes prices, terms, 
conditions and the period covered, although no quantities are specified.  
 
Brand Name – A name that serves to identify a product of a particular manufacturer or a trade name. 
 
Centralized Purchasing – A system of purchasing in which a separate individual or department within an 
organization has the authority to make some or all of the purchases for that organization. 
 
Change Order – A written order signed by the procurement officer of WestCO, directing the contractor or 
vendor/supplier to make changes to the contract; a modification or addition to the purchase order. 
 
Collusion – A secret agreement or cooperation between two or more persons to accomplish a fraudulent, 
deceitful or unlawful purpose. 
 
Competitive Negotiation – A method of contracting for goods and services, whereby proposals are 
solicited from qualified suppliers, following submission of which changes in proposals and prices are 
allowed and the offer deemed by the awarding authority to be most advantageous, in terms of criteria as 
designated in the Request For Proposal, is accepted. 
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Competitive Sealed Bidding – The submission of prices by individuals or firms competing for a contract, 
privilege, or right to supply merchandise or services, based solely on the response to the criteria set forth in 
the Invitation For Bid and does not include discussions or negotiations with the bidders.  Competitive sealed 
bidding is the preferred method of source selection in public procurement. 
 
Competitive Sealed Proposal – A method of contracting for goods and services whereby proposals are 
solicited from qualified suppliers.  Following submission of such, discussions or negotiations may be 
conducted and changes in proposals and prices are allowed and the offer deemed by the awarding authority 
to be most advantageous, in terms of criteria designated in the Request For Proposal, is accepted. 
 
Conflict of Interest - A situation where the personal interests of a contractor, public official or classified 
employee are in actual or potential conflict in which a person may gain from (or holds interest in) a company 
doing business with his employer and is at odds with the best interests of the jurisdiction. 
 
Contract – A deliberate oral or written agreement, enforceable by law, between two or more competent 
persons to perform or not to perform a specific act or acts. 
 
Contract Modification – Any written alteration to specifications, delivery point, rate of delivery, period 
of performance, price quality or other provisions of any contract accomplished by mutual action of the 
parties to the contract. 
 
Debarment – The exclusion of a person or company from participating in a procurement activity for an 
extended period of time, as specified by law, because of previous illegal or irresponsible action. 
 
Default – Failure by a party to a contract to comply with contractual requirements; contractor failure to 
perform. 
 
Disposition – Transferring, trading-in, selling or destroying goods that are excess property, surplus property 
or scrap. 
 
Emergency Purchase – A purchase made to alleviate a situation in which there is a threat to health, welfare 
or safety under certain conditions defined as an emergency by the jurisdiction, that does not allow time for 
normal, competitive purchasing procedures. 
 
Escalation Clause – A contract provision which permits the adjustment of contract prices by a given 
amount or percentage if certain specified contingencies occur, such as changes in the contractor’s raw 
material or labor costs. 
 
Ethics – The principles of conduct governing the behavior of an individual or profession. 
 
Evaluation of Bid – The process of examining a bid after opening to determine the bidder’s responsibility, 
responsiveness to requirements and to ascertain other characteristics of the bid that relate to determination 
of the successful bidder. 
 
Formal Bid or Offer – A bid that must be submitted in a sealed envelope and in conformance with a 
prescribed format, to be opened at a specified time. 

40



409 PROCUREMENT GLOSSARY

 

 

08-15-17 PROCUREMENT GLOSSARY 
 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 
Identical Bid – A bid that is the same in all salient respects with another bid. 
 
Ineligible Bidder – A supplier or prospective supplier who, by reason of financial instability, unsatisfactory 
reputation, poor history of performance, or other deficiency, does not meet the qualifications for placement 
on the vendor’s list or for award. 
 
Informal Bid – An unsealed competitive offer conveyed by letter, telephone, telegram, or other means and 
under conditions different from those required for formal bidding (see Request For Quote.) 
 
Invitation For Bid – A formal request to prospective vendors soliciting bids.  Invitation For Bid contains, 
or incorporates by references, the specifications or scope of work and all contractual terms and conditions.  
This is the customary method used by state and local governments for the purchase of equipment, materials, 
supplies and construction. 
 
Legal Notice - Notice of a proposed purchase as required by law.  Depending upon the legal requirements, 
notice may be satisfied by posting an announcement of the purchase in a public place, notification of the 
appropriate bidders from the bidders list, formal advertisement in a newspaper or combination of these 
methods. 
 
Local Preference – An advantage in consideration for award of a contract granted to a bidder by reason of 
the bidder’s residence, business location, origin of product offered, or other reason. 
 
Lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder – Originally, the bidder submitting the lowest initial price 
and capable of performing the proposed contract.  For clarity and accuracy, the recommended provision for 
determining award is the “responsive and responsible bidder whose bid is most economical for the purpose 
intended, according to criteria set forth in the solicitation.” 
 
Modification – Any formal revision of the terms of a contract. 
 
Multiple Award – The award of contracts to two or more bidders for the same or essentially similar items.  
Appropriate only in situations where the award of a single contract would be impossible or impractical and 
awards are limited to the least number of suppliers necessary for a workable contract. 
 
Multi-Step competitive Bidding – A competitive process calling for separate submissions of a technical 
proposal (which may be negotiated) as the first step or steps of the process followed by a call for non-
negotiable competitive-price bid as the final step. 
 
Non-Responsive Bid – A bid that does not conform to the essential requirements of the Invitation For Bids.
 
Open-Market Purchase – A purchase, usually of a limited monetary amount, from any available source 
(direct purchase). 
 
Option to Renew – A contract clause that allows a party to elect to reinstate the contract for an additional 
term; in public procurement, where competitive bidding is required; exercise of the option must rest solely 
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with the purchaser.  Specific provisions for the renewal option must be incorporated into the solicitation 
and the contract. 
 
Payment Bond – A bond, which assures payments, as required by law, to all persons supplying labor or 
material for the completion of work under the contract. 
 
Penalty Clause – A clause in a contract specifying the sum of money to be paid if the contractor defaults 
on the terms of the contract, particularly in respect to time. 
 
Performance Bond – A contract of guaranty executed subsequent to award by a successful bidder to protect 
the government from loss due to contractor inability to complete the contract as agreed. 
 
Professional Services - Services rendered by members of a recognized profession or possessing a special 
skill.  Such services are generally acquired to obtain information, advice, training or direct assistance 
(architectural, engineering). 
 
Qualified Bidder – A bidder determined by the government to meet standards of business competence, 
reputation, financial ability, and product quality for placement on a list of prospective bidders. 
 
Request For Information – The document used in informal, non-competitive solicitation of information, 
data, comments, or reactions from possible suppliers preceding the issuance of a Request For Proposals or 
a multi-step bidding procedure. 
 
Request For Proposal (RFP) – All documents, whether attached or incorporated by reference, used for 
soliciting formal competitive proposals.  The RFP procedure permits negotiation of proposals and prices as 
distinguished from competitive bidding and an Invitation For Bid. 
 
Request For Quote (RFQ) – An informal solicitation or request for information, where oral or written 
quotes are obtained from vendors, without formal advertising or receipt of sealed bids.  Used only where 
statutes do not require formal sealed bids such as small or emergency purchases, but price competition is 
desired. 
 
Responsible Bidder or Offeror – A person who has the capability in all respects to perform in full the 
contract requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good-faith performance. 
 
Responsive Bidder - A person who has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to the 
Invitation For Bid. 
 
Sealed Bid – A bid that has been submitted in a sealed envelope to prevent its contents being revealed or 
known before the deadline for the submission of all bids; usually required by law or rule on major 
procurements, to ensure fair competition. 
 
Service Contract – A contract that calls for a contractor’s time and effort rather than for a concrete end 
product.  The term as defined here does not include employment agreements or collective bargaining 
agreements. 
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Services – The furnishing of labor, time, or effort by a contractor, not involving the delivery of a specific 
end product other that reports that are merely incidental to the required performance.  This term does not 
include employment/collective bargaining agreements. 
 
Solicitation – The process of notifying prospective bidders or offerors that the jurisdiction wishes to receive 
bids for furnished goods or services.  The process may consist of public advertising, mailing Invitations 
For Bids or Requests For Proposals, posting notices, telephone or telegraph messages to prospective bidders 
or all of these. 
 
Statement (Scope) of Work – The product of organizational analysis, activity analysis, data gathering, 
performance analysis and cost analysis identifying the specifics that address the need of the using agency 
and how that need may be met. 
 
Term Contracting – A technique by which a source of supply is established for a specific period of time.  
Term contracts characteristically are established through competitive sealed bidding and usually are based 
on indefinite quantities to be ordered “as needed”, although such contracts can specify definite quantities 
with deliveries extended over the contract period. 
 
Waiver of Bid – A process authorized by law or rule whereby a government procurement office may 
procure items without competitive bidding procedures because of unique circumstances related to a 
particular need or procurement. 
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410.01  ACRONYMS WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
(WestCO) 

410.02 FORMS The Forms A – E are included for reference.   
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WESTCO  
 

SOLE SOURCE WAIVER REQUEST 
 

 
DATE: _________________  
 
REQUESTED BY: _____________________________  BID NO. ________________  
 
VENDOR NAME:  ______________________________  COST:  _________________ 
 
 

 

JUSTIFICATION 
(INITIAL ALL ENTRIES THAT APPLY TO REQUEST) 

 
PRODUCT OR SERVICE DESCRIPTION: ________________________________________________ 
 
1.  ___________ Vendor is the original equipment manufacturer and there are no 

            regional distributors. 
 

2.  ___________ The product, equipment or service requested is clearly superior 
functionally to all other similar products, equipment or service 
from another manufacturer or vendor. 
 

3.  ___________ The over-riding consideration for purchase is compatibility or 
conformity with WestCO-owned equipment in which non-conformance would require the 
expenditure of additional funds. 
 

4.  ___________ No other equipment is available that shall meet the specialized  
needs of the department or perform the intended function. 
 

5.  ___________ Detailed justification is available which establishes beyond doubt  
that the vendor is the only source available to provide the item or  
service required. 
 

6.  ___________ Detailed justification is available which proves it is economically  
advantageous to use the product, equipment or service. 
 

 
I recommend that competitive procurement procedures be waived and the product or service described herein be purchased as a sole source. 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZATION:__________________________________________ ______  
    Authorized Signature   Title              Date 
 
FINAL AUTHORIZATION:  Board Approval Required  ($50,000 +)  YES          NO 
    Board Approval Required  ($10,000-$50,000) YES    NO 
BOARD AUTHORIZATION: ________________________ _________________ ______   
   Authorized Signature   Title      Date 

Attach detailed justification documentation 
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FORM B      WESTCO 
 
434 S. FIRST STREET                                 MONTROSE, COLORADO 81401 

(970) 249-9110           FAX (970) 249-5907
             

REQUEST FOR QUOTE 
           

 
BID NO. _____ CLOSING DATE: _______TIME: _2:00 p.m. 
 
 
WestCO is requesting quotes on the items listed below. Please sign the Offer and Acceptance.  WestCO is tax exempt so do not include taxes 
in your quote. Fax quotes are acceptable and may be faxed to Purchasing Department, 970-249-9110 
 

BOLD TEXT WITH PROJECT NAME 
ITEM QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

AMOUNT 

1.     
2.     
3.     
4.     
5.     
6.     
7.     
8.     
9.     
10.     
11.     
12.     
13.     
14.     
15.     

 
PLEASE CALL _____________________ @ ___________ IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ON 

THIS PROJECT 
 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE 
 
The undersigned offers and agrees to furnish any or all of the items listed herein at the prices, terms and delivery stated. 
 
COMPANY ____________________________________________________________________________  
 
ADDRESS ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TELEPHONE NO. _____________________________     FAX NO. ______________  
 
SIGNATURE: __________________________________ PRINT NAME ____________________________ 
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FORM C  

WESTCO 
REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER 

 
 

REQUEST DATE: _____________________  
 

 
PROJECT NAME/LOCATION: __________________________________________________   
 
 
BID NO. _________________                      CHANGE ORDER # _______ OF _______ 

 
 
ADDITION TO CONTRACT: YES____  NO _____  MODIFICATION TO BID:   YES____ NO _____ 
 
 
 
REASON FOR CHANGE ORDER (Attach cost and pricing information, contractor/vendor “in-field” requests/statements and 
other information supporting request.  ) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I certify that unencumbered funds are available in Account No. _____________________________ and that the change order is proper and 
in the best interest of WestCO. 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AUTHORIZATION:__________________________________________ ______
      Authorized Signature   Title              Date 
 
FINAL AUTHORIZATION:  Board Approval Required  ($50,000 +)  YES          NO 
    Board Approval Required  ($10,000-$50,000) YES    NO 
 
BOARD AUTHORIZATION: ________________________ _________________ ______  
    Authorized Signature   Title      Date 
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FORM D     

WESTCO 
PROCUREMENT SOLICITATION FORM 

 
Project Name: 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Description: 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
         
Project Purpose: ___________________________________________________________________ 
  
Project Lead: ________________________    Alternate Contact #: _________________________ 
  
Estimated Cost: ______________________         Grant: YES  NO  
If Grant yes, include the federal procurement regulations, the complete grant packet(s) and any other 
agreements to be attached to this solicitation. 
  
Vendor Information – List three vendor names with address (if more than 3 attach a list to this form) 
 

1. Name: _________________________________________________ 
Address: _______________________________________________ 
City: ___________________________ State:  __________________________________ 
Phone: __________________________Fax:  ___________________________________ 
E-Mail: _______________________________ Contact:___________________________ 

 
2. Name: _________________________________________________ 

             Address: _______________________________________________ 
             City: __________________________ State:  ___________________________________ 
             Phone: __________________________Fax:  ___________________________________ 

 E-Mail: ________________________________Contact: __________________________ 
 
3. Name of Company: _______________________________________ 
      Address: ________________________________________________ 

             City: ____________________________State:  __________________________________ 
             Phone: __________________________ Fax:  ___________________________________ 

      E-Mail: _________________________________Contact: _________________________ 
 

Preferred Submittal Deadline Date: ______________________________ 
 
Executive Director Approval Signature: _____________________________________Date:________________ 
 

FOR PROCUREMENT OFFICE USE ONLY 
 

Bid #. ____________________      Date Received: _________________ Date Prepared: __________________ 
 
Request for Quote       Invitation for Bid      Request for Proposal     Request for Qualifications   
  
 

Public Notice Required:  YES     NO          Public Notice Date(s): ___________________________ 
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FORM E 

WESTCO 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT REDUCTION REPORT 

 
 
 
DATE: _________________    
 

METHOD OF DISPOSITION:  EXCESS PROPERTY 
(PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)   (AUCTION/TRANSFER/TRADE-IN OR OTHER DEPARTMENTAL USAGE) 
 

      STORAGE ONLY 
      (DEPARTMENT WILL USE AT LATER TIME) 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION 
 

ITEM FOR 
DISPOSITION 

SERIAL # CITY EQUIP # NUMBER OF 
ITEMS 

CONDITION OF ITEM 

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

DEPARTMENT AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: __________________________________________ 
 
 

TRANSFER FROM: TRANSFER TO: 

TRANSACTION DATE: RECEIVED BY: 

PURCHASING SIGNATURE: DATE OF COMPUTER ENTRY: 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2017-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WESTERN COLORADO 
REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER ESTABLISHING A COLORADO LIQUID ASSET 
SECURITIES SYSTEM 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center 
(“WestCO”) resolve to authorize the WestCO to join with other Local Government Entities and 
Political Subdivisions as a Participant in the Colorado Statewide Asset Trust d/b/a Colorado Local 
Government Liquid Asset Trust (the “Trust ”) in order to pool funds for investment; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-75-701 et seq., as amended, it is lawful for any county, city 
and county, city, town, school district, special district, or other political subdivision of the state, or 
any department, agency, or instrumentality thereof, or any political or public corporation of the 
state (a Local Government Entity) to pool any moneys in treasury, which are not immediately 
required to be disturbed, with the same such moneys in the treasury of any other Local Government 
Entity in order to take advantage of a short-term investments and maximize net interest earnings; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Trust is a statutory trust formed under the laws of the State of Colorado in 
accordance with the provisions of Parts 6 and 7, Article 24 and Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11 of 
the Colorado Revised Statutes regarding the investing, pooling for investment and protection of 
public funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, WestCO desires to come a participant in the Trust.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER: 
 
Section 1. The Board of Directors of WestCO hereby approves and adopts, and thereby joins as a 
Participant with other Local Governments pursuant to Part 7, Article 75, Title 24 of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes, that certain Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust entitled the Colorado 
Liquid Government Asset Trust dated October 3, 2003 as amended from time to time, the terms 
of which are incorporated herein by this reference and a copy of which shall be filed with the 
minutes of the meeting at which this Resolution was adopted; and  
 
Section 2. The Designee and Authorized Signatories are those persons listed on the Trust 
Registration Form attached hereto and incorporated herein. The Authorized Signatories are 
authorized by the Participant to direct the investment of such Participants’ investment funds.  
 
Section 3. The Designee and Authorized Signatories may be changed from time to time by written 
notice to COLOTRUST; and  
 

50



DM #81477  2 
 

Section 4. The Trust has two investment portfolios; COLOTRUST PRIME comprised of U.S. 
Treasury securities and COLOTRUST PLUS+ comprised of U.S. Treasury Securities, U.S. 
Agency Securities, and the highest rated commercial paper. The Designee is hereby authorized to 
invest in both funds.  
 

INTRODUCED, READ, and ADOPTED this ______ day of October 2017, by the Board 
of Directors of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center. 
     
 

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH 
CENTER 

 
 
     By: __________________________________ 
            Tom Chinn, Chairperson  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Tad Rowen, Secretary  
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RESOLUTION NO. 2017-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WESTERN COLORADO 
REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER ESTABLISHING AN EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 
FUND IN THE WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER BUDGET  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center 
(“WestCO”) utilizes and maintains equipment necessary for the provision of emergency 
communication and dispatch services; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have set aside funds in WestCO’s Operation Fund for the 
maintenance and replacement of such equipment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to allocate such funds to a dedicated fund under the 
annual budget.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER: 
 
Section 1.   The WestCO Budget shall reflect an “Equipment Replacement Fund” as GL630, which 
shall be used solely for maintenance and replacement of equipment necessary for the operations 
of WestCO.  
 
Section 2.  The 2016 and 2017 WestCO budgets each reserved $46,100.00 for the future 
replacement of equipment necessary for the operations of WestCO.  A total of $92,200.00 shall be 
taken from WestCO’s Operation Fund and transferred to the Equipment Replacement Fund.  
 
Section 3.  Future contributions will be determined during the budget process. 
 

INTRODUCED, READ, and ADOPTED this ______ day of October 2017, by the Board 
of Directors of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center. 
     

WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH 
CENTER 

 
 
     By: __________________________________ 
            Tom Chinn, Chairperson  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Tad Rowen, Secretary  
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M1 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
As management of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center (WestCO), we offer readers of WestCO’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of WestCO for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016.   
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 WestCO was established in March of 2016 to provide emergency services to several communities in 

Montrose, San Miguel and Ouray counties. 
 The assets of WestCO exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2016 by $282,401.  This entire amount is 

unrestricted to meet WestCO’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 
 As of the close of the current fiscal year, WestCO reported ending fund balance of $235,191. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to WestCO’s basic financial statements.  
WestCO’s basic financial statements comprise two components which are financial statements and notes to the 
financial statements.   
 
Financial statements.  The financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
WestCO’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of WestCO’s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of WestCo is improving or deteriorating. 
 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

2016

ASSETS

Current and Other Assets 281,598$         

Capital Assets 52,000             

  Total Assets 333,598           

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 51,197             

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 52,000             

Unrestricted 230,401           

  Total Net Position 282,401$          
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M2 
 

 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information on all of WestCO’s 
revenue and expenses, with the difference between the two reported as net position. 
 

2016

PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating Revenues 1,125,877$      

Operatng Expenses 843,476           

Change in Net Position 282,401           

Net Position - Beginning -                      

Net Position - Ending 282,401$         

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

 
 
Proprietary funds. WestCO is set up like a proprietary fund or enterprise fund.  Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.   

 
Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages 6 through 11 of the report. 
 
Other information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning WestCO’s budgetary comparisons.  Required 
supplementary information can be found on page 12 of this report. 

 
Net Position.  At the end of the current fiscal year, WestCO’s assets total $282,401 with liabilities totaling 
$51,197 which leaves a positive unrestricted net position of $282,401.   
 
Budgetary Highlights.  WestCO’s final budget was $1,020,415 with actual expenditures totaled $895,476.  
The budget was completed in accordance with WestCO’s governing agreement.   
 
Capital Assets.  In 2017, WestCO will receive $908,282 in capital asset donations.  
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, WestCO does not have any long-term debt. 
 
Economic Factors  
 
 According to the USDA website, the 2016 unemployment rate for Montrose County was 4.5%.  Montrose 

County had a slightly higher unemployment rate than the state’s average rate of 3.7% and the national 
average rate of 4.9%. 

 WestCO will continue to provide dispatch services for governmental entities in Montrose, Ouray and San 
Miguel counties. Requests for Information 

 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of WestCO’s finances for all those with an 
interest in WestCO’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or requests 
for additional financial information should be addressed to either the Executive Director or WestCO or the City 
of Montrose, Office of the Finance Director, P. O. Box 790, 433 S. First Street, Montrose, Colorado, 81402. 
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Board of Directors 
Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center 
Montrose, Colorado 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center (WestCO) 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements which collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements of WestCO, as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, cash flows, thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information – Management Discussion and Analysis 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management, discussion and 
analysis on pages M1-M2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The budgetary 
comparison schedule listed as other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the financial statements. The information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

 
Englewood, Colorado 
July 31, 2017
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2015

2016

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Cash 236,197$         

Receivables
Accounts Receivable 43,206             

Prepaid Expenses 2,195                

Total Current Assets 281,598           

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets being depreciated 52,000             

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 333,598$         

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 22,867$           
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 28,330             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 51,197             

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 52,000             
Unrestricted Net Position 230,401           

TOTAL NET POSITION 282,401           

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION 333,598$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

2016

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services 1,124,515$        
Other Miscellaneous Revenue 1,362                  

Total Revenues 1,125,877          

Operating Expenses

Personnel Services 658,657              
Administrative/Office Expenses 3,210                  

Insurance 6,441                  
Operating Supplies 2,608                  
Professional Fees 144,293              
Travel and Training 11,583                
Telephone and Utilities 4,188                  
Other Operating Expenses 1,037                  
Other Capital Outlay 11,459                

Total Expenditures 843,476              

Change in Net Position 282,401              

Net Position, Beginning ‐                           

Net Position, Ending 282,401$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ‐
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers 1,082,671$        
Cash Paid to Suppliers (294,220)            
Cash Paid to Employees (500,254)            

 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 288,197              

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Assets (52,000)              

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 236,197              
Cash ‐ Beginning ‐                           

Cash ‐ Ending 236,197$           

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Used for

 Operating Activities:

   Operating Income (Loss) 282,401$           

  Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

   to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
    Changes in Assets and Liabilities Related to Operations:

(Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts Receivable (43,206)              

Prepaid Expenses (2,195)                 
(Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts Payable 22,867                
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 28,330                

      Total Adjustments 5,796                  

 Net Cash Used for Operating Activities 288,197$           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016 
 

6 
 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

History and Function of Organization 
The Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center (WestCO) is an intergovernmental agency 
created in 2015 between the City of Montrose, the Montrose Fire Protection District, the 
Telluride Fire Protection District, the Town of Telluride, the Town of Mountain Village, and the 
Town of Olathe governed by a five-member board of directors.  WestCO was established to 
provide emergency dispatch services to the counties of Ouray, San Miguel, and Montrose.  
WestCo commenced operations in 2016.  The significant accounting policies utilized are 
detailed below. 

 
Financial Reporting Entity 
WestCO applies the criteria set forth in GASB Codification Section 2100: Defining the 
Financial Reporting Entity, to determine which governmental organizations should be 
included in the reporting entity. The inclusion or exclusion of component units is based on 
the elected officials' accountability to their constituents, and the financial reporting entity 
follows the same accountability. Further, the financial statements of the reporting entity 
should enable the reader to distinguish between the primary government (including its 
blended component units, which are, in substance, part of the primary government) and 
discretely presented component units. 
 
The criteria used for determining whether an entity should be included, either blended or 
discretely presented, includes but is not limited to: fiscal dependency, imposition of will, 
legal standing, and the primary recipient of services. Based on these criteria, WestCO has 
no includable component units.  WestCO is also not included in the financial statements of 
any other entity. 

 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
As a special purpose government, basic financial statements are presented at the activity 
level.  
 
Activity level financial statements focus on the sustainability of WestCO as an entity and 
the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the year. These 
aggregated statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Change 
in Fund Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. 
 
As a special purpose government, WestCO has only one fund, an enterprise/proprietary 
fund which is also considered its business type activity.  WestCO does not present any 
other fund or activity information. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Enterprise fund accounting is utilized in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Enterprise funds recognize revenues and 
expenses on the accrual basis of accounting where revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when incurred. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
WestCO distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection 
with WestCO's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of WestCO 
are charges to customers for sales and service. Operating expenses include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 
 
WestCO follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis - 
for State and Local Governments. Statement No. 34 establishes standards for external 
financial reporting for all state and local governmental entities which includes a 
management's discussion and analysis section; a statement of net position; a statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and a statement of cash flows. It requires 
the classification of net position into three components – net investment in capital assets; 
restricted; and unrestricted. 
 

  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as all bank and 
investment account balances with liquidity of three months or less. 
 
Accumulated Unpaid Leave (Compensated Absences) 
WestCO’s employees fall under the City of Montrose, Colorado’s benefits plan therefore they 
are allowed vacation carryover of 200 hours.   Sick leave is paid at one quarter of the 
outstanding balance up to 100 hours.  Up to 60 hours of compensated absences can be 
accumulated.   

 
Receivables 
Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  At the end of 
the current year, these receivables consisted of uncollected billings to WestCO participating 
governments. 
 

  Capital Assets 
Assets are stated at cost or fair market value in case of donated assets. Depreciation is 
taken on these assets over their estimated remaining useful lives using the straight-line 
method.  These assets primarily represent property, plant and equipment depreciated over a 
period of 5 to 50 years.  Depreciation begins in the year following completion for assets 
under construction or following acquisition of the capital assets. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016 
 

8 
 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Equity 
Equity is classified as net position and may be displayed in three components: 
 
 Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
 Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on the use 
either by (1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted net position - all other net position that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." This net position is available for future 
operations or distributions. 

 
It is WestCO’s policy to fund operations through the most restricted available equity first.  
Currently, WestCO only has an Unrestricted net position. 
 

  Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
Budgets are prepared on the same basis of accounting as that used for accounting 
purposes. In the budget versus actual statements, the actual results of operations are 
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting for proper comparison to the budget. 
 
Budgets are adopted based on the requirements of state statutes.  The following timetable is 
used: 
 
1)   Submission of the preliminary planning budget and cost estimates shall be presented to 

the Board of Directors by July 31 of each year. 
2)  The recommended budget is provided to the Board of Directors for comment by August 

31. 
3)  Final adoption of the budget and appropriations by September 30 of each year. 
 
WestCO does not utilize encumbrance accounting and all appropriations lapse at year end. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016 
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

For the financial statement presentation, cash and investment balances are comprised of 
and allocated as follows: 
 

Unrestricted Cash 236,197$           
 
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the government’s 
deposits may not be returned to it.  WestCO’s deposit policy is in accordance with CRS 11-
10.5-101, The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA), which governs the investment 
of public funds.  PDPA requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible 
public depositories.  Eligibility is determined by state regulations.  Amounts on deposit in 
excess of federal insurance levels ($250,000) must be collateralized by eligible collateral as 
determined by the PDPA.  The financial institution is allowed to create a single collateral pool 
for all public funds held.  The pool is to be maintained by another institution, or held in trust 
for all the uninsured public deposits as a group.  The market value of the collateral must be 
at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits. The institution’s internal records identify 
collateral by depositor and as such, these deposits are considered uninsured but 
collateralized.  The State Regulatory Commissions for banks and financial services are 
required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the 
uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools.  At December 31, 2016, all 
of WestCO’s deposits as shown below were insured by federal depository insurance and are 
therefore not deemed to be exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 

Bank Carrying
Balance Balance

FDIC Insured 237,099$    236,197$           
 

 
NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

As of December 31, 2016, the majority of WestCO’s operating equipment was still owned by 
the City of Montrose.  These assets were transferred to WestCO subsequent to the end of 
the year as further described in Note 7.  The following is a summary of WestCO’s capital 
asset activity. 
 

Balance Balance

12/31/2015 Additions Deletions 12/31/2016

Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Equipment ‐$                  52,000$       ‐$              52,000$      
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016 
 

10 
 

NOTE 4: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 
 

WestCO provides benefits for all of its full-time employees through a defined contribution 
plan.  In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the 
plan plus investment earnings.   
 
The International City Managers Association (ICMA) Retirement Corporation Money 
Purchase Plan, a City of Montrose, Colorado plan, covers all full-time WestCO employees.  
Employees are eligible to participate on the first day of employment.  WestCO agrees to 
match contributions for each full-time employee up to 8% of the employee’s gross salary.  
Employees are vested 20% each year. 
 
WestCO’s contributions were calculated using the base salary of $523,000.  Contributions of 
up to 8% for employees totaled $19,476. 

 
NOTE 5: EMPLOYEE MEDICAL BENEFIT PLAN 

 
The employees for WestCO are considered employees of the City of Montrose (the City) 
therefore they fall under the City’s medical benefit plan.  The City adopted an employee 
medical benefit plan whereby the City self-insures the first $75,000 per individual of covered 
medical claims, with a maximum annual WestCO self-insurance liability of approximately 
$37,335, exclusive of dental benefits, based on approximately 18 employees and 
dependents covered in 2016.  The City estimates and records incurred but not reported 
medical claims liability in the Employee Medical Benefit Fund based on historical experience 
of outstanding medical claims.  No allocation of incurred but not reported claims liability was 
allocated to WestCO for the 2016 fiscal year end.   
  

NOTE 6: PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL 
 

WestCO is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters.  
WestCO is participant in the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (CIRSA). 
 
CIRSA operates as a common risk management and insurance program for 260 members 
participating in the Property & Casualty Pool and 128 members in the Worker’s 
Compensation Pool.  WestCO pays an annual premium to CIRSA for its general insurance 
coverage and works’ compensation insurance coverage.  The agreement for formation of 
CIRSA provides that CIRSA will be financed by member premiums and will reinsure through 
commercial companies for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured event.  WestCO 
has other commercial insurance for other risks including employee health and accident 
insurance described in Note 5.  

 
NOTE 7: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

WestCO has taken ownership of capital assets during 2017 from the City of Montrose.  The 
capital assets are in the amount of $908,282 and primarily represent the dispatch equipment 
used in daily operations.  Transfer of ownership of the equipment did not happen prior to 
December 31, 2016. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2016 
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NOTE 8: EMERGENCY TELEPHONE AND NONEMERGENCY REFERRRAL SERVICES 
 

WestCO contracts with the Montrose Emergency Telephone Services Agency (METSA) and 
the San Miguel Emergency Telephone Services Agency (SMETSA) to provide services for 
the agencies.  Under CRS 29-11-104 the agencies provide WestCO money for services that 
range from use of equipment directly related to the receipt of routing of emergency calls to 
recurring monthly charges of service suppliers.  WestCO appears to be in compliance with 
CRS 29-11-104 as the services contracted directly relate to the allowable services provided 
in CRS 29-11-104.  Amounts received from these agencies are included as charges for 
services in the financial statements. 
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WESTERN COLORADO REGIONAL DISPATCH CENTER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center Fund
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Variance
Final with Final

Budget Actual Budget

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services 1,020,415$        1,124,515$        104,100$           
Other Miscellaneous Revenue ‐                           1,362                  1,362                  

Total Revenues 1,020,415          1,125,877          105,462              

Operating Expenses

Personnel Services 919,052              658,657             260,395              
Administrative/Office Expenses 2,000                  3,210                  (1,210)                 
Insurance ‐                           6,441                  (6,441)                 
Operating Supplies 1,500                  2,608                  (1,108)                 
Professional Fees 37,763                144,293             (106,530)            
Travel and Training 3,000                  11,583               (8,583)                 
Telephone and Utilities 11,000                4,188                  6,812                  
Other Operating Expenses ‐                           1,037                  (1,037)                 
Other Capital Outlay 46,100                63,459               (17,359)              

Total Expenditures 1,020,415          895,476             124,939              

Change in Net Position (Budget Basis) ‐$                        230,401             230,401$           

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Capital Outlay 52,000              

Change in Net Position ‐ GAAP Basis 282,401            

Net Position, Beginning ‐                         

Net Position, Ending 282,401$          

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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